ASSOCIATION FOR LIBRARY SERVICE TO CHILDREN

LOUISE SEAMAN BECHTEL FELLOWSHIP

COMMITTEE MANUAL

TABLE OF CONTENTS

FOREWORD: Louise Seaman Bechtel and the Baldwin Library	4
PART I. BACKGROUND INFORMATION	6
History and Purpose	6
Committee Function Statement	6
Terms	6
Award Criteria	6
The Committee	7
Priority Group Consultant	7
PART II. COMMITTEE WORK	8
Welcome	8
Calendar	8
Committee Participation	8
Communication	9
Confidentiality	9
Suggested Voting Procedures	9
Annual Timeline	10
PART III. ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES	13
Introduction	13
Committee Chair Responsibilities	13
Committee Member Responsibilities	14
Priority Group Consultant Responsibilities	14

	ALSC Program Coordinator Responsibilities
	ALSC Membership Role14
	ALSC Board Responsibilities
	ALSC President and Vice President Responsibilities
	ALA Public Information Office Responsibilities
APPEN	NDIX16
	A. Sample Application
	B. Supervisor Information Form
	C. Sample Letter to Supervisor
	D. Sample Press Release
	E. Sample Letter to Unsuccessful Applicants
	F. List of Past Bechtel Fellowship Recipients, by Year and Topic21

FOREWORD: Louise Seaman Bechtel and the Baldwin Library

Who was Louise Seaman Bechtel?

Editor, author, lecturer on children's literature, Louise Seaman Bechtel served as editor and head of the juvenile book department of Macmillan Publishing Company in New York City. A 1915 graduate of Vassar College, Bechtel began work for Macmillan in 1919. After leaving Macmillan in 1934, Bechtel worked as a freelance writer and lecturer. She was the eeditor of the children's section of the New York *Herald Tribune* Book Review from 1948 to 1956 and was aassociate eeditor of *The Horn Book Magazine*, a journal on literature for children, from 1939 to 1957. She married Edwin DeTurch Bechtel in 1929. In 1980, Ms. Bechtel donated portions of her papers, an extensive book collection and memorabilia to Vassar College and the University of Florida. Born in 1894, Bechtel died in 1985.

What is the Baldwin Library?

The Baldwin Library of Historical Children's Literature, housed in the Department of Special Collections at the University of Florida, contains approximately 103,000 volumes published in Great Britain and America from the mid 1600's to the current year. Its holdings of more than 800 titles published in North America before 1820 is the second largest such collection in the United States.

This vast assemblage presents many possible subjects for the researcher to explore, including education and upbringing, civic values, family and gender roles, and racial, religious, and moral attitudes. These areas complement the obvious resources for the study of literacy style, format, and the arts of illustration and book designs.

The collection includes alphabet and picture books, moral tales, adolescent fiction, adventure stories, poetry books, paper engineered books (pop-ups,) natural histories, geographies, biographies, and more than 6,000 19th century books and tracts published for children by religious organizations such as the American Sunday School Union.

Although the Baldwin Library contains many well-known titles, it emphasizes the entire spectrum of books known to have been read by children. Consequently, researchers will have access to the classics of children's literature as well as many unique or extremely rare titles that were deemed "unworthy" to be held in other repositories.

The broad scopes of time, topic, and author allow for both comprehensive and in-depth reviews and study. Cultural, social, and literary trends can be studied in a general nature beginning from the time books for children were introduced, or through deeper exploration of a more specific time period.

The collection also offers a unique opportunity for comparative studies. There are many titles with parallel British and American editions in the library that facilitate study of the differences between the two cultures. There are also many texts represented by numerous editions that provide ample resources for constructing the evolution of text through several years or decades.

For example, over 300 British and American editions of *Robinson Crusoe* published from 1719 through the mid 1980s are among the holdings.

For more information about the Baldwin Library, contact:

Rita Smith, Curator Department of Special Collections George A. Smathers Libraries P.O. Box 117007 University of Florida Gainesville, Florida 32611

Telephone: 352-273-2769

Fax: 352-846-2746 E-mail: rjsmith@ufl.edu

Web site: http://www.uflib.ufl.edu/spec/baldwin/baldwin.html

PART I: BACKGROUND INFORMATION

History and Purpose

The Louise Seaman Bechtel Fellowship is designed to allow qualified children's librarians to spend a month or more reading and studying at the Baldwin Library of the George A. Smathers Libraries, University of Florida, Gainesville. The Baldwin Library contains a special collection of 103,000 volumes of children's literature published between 1658 and the current year. The Fellowship is endowed in memory of Louise Seaman Bechtel and Ruth M. Baldwin and will provides a stipend of \$4,000.

Committee Function Statement

To select annually up to three (3) librarians, the number to be determined by the income available and the qualifications of the applicants, to be awarded Fellowship(s) in the amount of \$4,000 to read and study at the Baldwin Library of the George A. Smathers Libraries, University of Florida, for a period of at least one month.

Terms

Applications are due December 1st of each year. Up to three Fellowships may be given. The awardee(s) are announced at the Midwinter Meeting of ALA.

Applications must include the following:

- A description of the topic of study for the Fellowship period.
- Demonstration of ongoing commitment to motivating children to read.

Please see Appendix A for a sample application.

Award Criteria

Candidates must have the following qualifications to be considered:

- Personal membership in the Association for Library Service to Children.
- Currently working in direct service to children, or retired members having completed their careers in direct service to children. If selected, retired Fellowship winners would agree to present a minimum of three public programs based on their research project to children in libraries or schools following the completion of their Fellowship period.
- At least 8 years professional experience in direct service to children.
- A graduate degree from an ALA-accredited program.
- Willingness to write a report about his/her study. The report will be submitted to the ALSC Office for distribution to the Bechtel Committee and for possible inclusion in *Children and Libraries*, and to the Director of the Smathers Libraries and the Director of the Center for the Study of Children's Literature and Media at the University of Florida.

Applications must include the following:

- A description of the topic of study for the Fellowship period.
- Demonstration of ongoing commitment to motivating children to read.

The stipend must be used during the months of January through September of the following year.

The Committee

The Chair is appointed for a one-year term, and four (4) committee members are appointed for two-year terms by the ALSC Vice-President/President-Elect in the spring. The terms begin at the close of the following Annual Conference, and continue through the Annual Conference one year later (for the Chair) or two years later (for the members). The curator of the Baldwin Library serves on the committee ex-officio.

Priority Group Consultant

The A Priority Group Consultant from Priority Group III (Awards and Scholarships) is assigned to the committee to dealserve as a resource for with questions from the Chair and the committee regarding procedure, personnel, and the eligibility of applicants.

The Priority Group Consultant works with the Chair to review annually the procedures of the committee and to make recommendations for improving the process. The recommendations can range from those that can be implemented easily to those requiring action by the ALSC Board. The Priority Group Consultant also works with the Chair to resolve procedural and personnel issues as they come up and questions about the eligibility of applicantsbooks.

Committee members may consult the Priority Group Consultant should there be unusual issues.that the Chair cannot resolve, particularly issues regarding the Chair.

PART II: COMMITTEE WORK

Welcome

Serving on the Bechtel Fellowship Committee is a rare professional experience. When all committee members have been appointed is complete, it is recommended that the Chair send a letter of welcome to the membership. The letter might include an outline of the year's work.

Calendar

It is the responsibility of the Chair to establish and distribute a calendar of the year's work as soon as possible. It is the responsibility of committee members to meet all deadlines to assure that the selection process is orderly and timely.

Committee Participation

Committee members are expected to participate in discussions, whether e-mail, fax, or in person, and engage in the business of the committee, including but not limited to encouraging colleagues to apply for the Fellowship, the selecting the Fellow(s), reviewing the Committee's functions, charges and procedures and participating in ALSC's Strategic Planning process as it relates to this committee.

Committee members are expected to attend all of the meetings at both Midwinter Meetings during the two years of service on the committee.

ALSC is grateful for the full participation of committee members. In recognition of their commitment, the Chair sends letters of appreciation to committee members' supervisors/employers (please see APPENDIX B, Supervisor Information Form, and APPENDIX C, Sample Letter to Supervisor)

Note ALA Policy 4.4 and 4.5: "No member shall serve concurrently in more than three separate positions, and committee members are expected to attend all meetings (Midwinter and/or Annual conference)."

General guidelines for effective committee discussion include the following:

- Come prepared to meetings, having read the Manual, the applications, etc.
- Speak to the committee as a whole; refrain from private conversations during meetings
- Speak briefly and to the point; that is, speak only to the terms, criteria, and definitions of the Fellowship
- Be receptive to others' ideas and comments

Communication

Electronic communication facilitates the distribution of information from the Chair to committee members, and the regular discussion of procedural issues. The Committee adheres to the "Guidelines for Electronic Communication for ALSC Committees," as adopted by the ALSC Board and as posted on the ALSC Web site at

http://www.ala.org/ala/alsc/boardcomm/guidelineselec/guidelineselectronic.htm and on page nine of this manual.

Committee members are not free to communicate with each other about committee work without going through the Chair. All e-mail from committee members is directed to the Chair unless the Chair invites open discussion on a matter of concern. At times, the Chair may invite open discussion on a matter of concern. The Chair facilitates such open discussion and will establish ground rules for electronic communication that are consistent with the policy referenced above.

As a practical matter, e-mail is not used for substantive discussion. It is not a substitute for face-to-face discussion of applicants.

Confidentiality

There is a need to maintain confidentiality regarding the committee discussions, oral or written, e-mail or fax. For e-mail, include the word "confidential" on the subject line or as part of the transmission options. For FAX communication, include the word "confidential" on a cover sheet. Do not forward e-mail to anyone outside of the committee except those in ALSC responsible for governance: the Executive Director, the President, and/or the Priority Group Consultant. Our reason is to ensure the privacy rights of committee members and candidates under discussion.

Please remember, then, that the following items are not for public discussion at any time—prior to, during, or following the selection of the award:

- Reasons given by individual committee members for supporting or removing candidates from consideration.
- Specific candidates under consideration.
- Details of the votes, if the committee votes on the candidates.

Suggested Voting Procedures

Under the direction of the Chair, the committee may discuss and agree upon any of the following procedures for shaping the list:

- Consensus: general agreement or opinion
- Oral vote (for example, use a vote of three to keep a nominee on the discussion list when shaping the final list of names)
- Secret written ballot for final selection
- Any combination of voting strategies

The selection of winner(s) must be a committee decision with strong support from each member.

Annual Timeline

June

- Chair and member terms begin at the close of ALA's Annual Conference.
- ALSC Program Coordinator sends manual to Chair and committee members.
- Chair ensures new application is available and posted on ALSC's Web site.
- Chair sends welcome email to members, and asks them to begin publicizing the opportunity and soliciting applications.
- Chair works with ALSC Program Coordinator to ensure current roster is posted on the ALSC Web site.

July-November

- ALSC Bechtel Fellowship Committee solicits applicants.
- Chair may request trifold promotional pieces from the University of Florida (if needed) about the Collection to give to serious candidates upon request.

September

• Chair arranges ALA Midwinter meeting time and space with the ALSC Program Coordinator.

November

• Chair arranges meeting time and space for following Annual Conference, if desired, with ALSC Program Coordinator.

December

- Applications are due to the Chair December 1.
- ALSC Program Coordinator forwards applications received by the ALSC office to Chair.
- Chair verifies ALSC membership of applicants with ALSC Program Coordinator.
- Chair acknowledges receipt of applications via postcard or email.
- Chair collects eligible applications, and copies and sends them to committee members.
- Chair submits Midwinter Meeting agenda & agenda cover sheet (found in the Division Leadership Manual, available on the ALSC Web site at http://www.ala.org), and requests an appearance before the ALSC Board, if desired, to announce winner.
- Committee members and Chair read applications in preparation for voting at Midwinter.
- Baldwin Curator, with information from the Fund Administrator, notifies the Chair of the number of Fellowships available.

Midwinter (January/early February)

- Chair attends ALSC Division Leadership Meeting (usually held Saturday morning)
- Committee meets in a closed meeting and selects Fellowship winner(s).
- Chair notifies Baldwin Curator of winner via phone call. (Can leave message)
- Chair provides information to the ALSC Office for announcement to the ALSC Board, or may visit the ALSC Board meeting to make the announcement.
- Immediately before or after announcement to the ALSC Board, Chair contacts winner.

 Committee drafts press release and Chair turns it in to the ALSC office before leaving Midwinter.

Immediately After Midwinter

- Chair sends letters to applicants who were not selected to receive Fellowships.
- Chair submits post-conference report (form found in the Division Leadership Manual, available on the ALSC Web site at http://www.ala.org).
- Chair solicits local publicity information from winner and forwards to ALSC Program Coordinator, who provides it to PIO.

February

- ALSC Program Coordinator contacts winner(s) of the Fellowship and secures acceptance, inviting Fellow(s) to attend ALSC membership meeting at Annual Conference to hear the announcement.
- ALSC Program Coordinator works with ALA's Public Information Office to ensure press release is finalized and disseminated.

March

- ALSC Program Coordinator sends the following information for each winner to Baldwin Curator:
 - Name
 - Address
 - Social Security Number
 - A copy of the winning application
- ALSC Program Coordinator invoices the Baldwin Curator for the \$500 administrative fee. Baldwin Curator requests money from Library Office, approved by Fund Administrator, and check is mailed to ALSC.

May

• If meeting at Annual Conference, Chair submits agenda and agenda cover sheet (found in the Division Leadership Manual, available on the ALSC Web site at http://www.ala.org).

June

- Chair attends ALSC Division Leadership Meeting, usually held Saturday morning, and committee meets if desired.
- Chair, committee members, and winner(s) may attend the ALSC Membership Meeting, usually held Monday morning or midday, to hear winner recognized.
- If committee met at Annual Conference, Chair submits post-conference report (form found in the Division Leadership Manual, available on the ALSC Web site at http://www.ala.org/alsc)

July

- Chair sends letters of appreciation to outgoing committee members' supervisors (see sample in Appendix).
- Chair sends files to ALSC Program Coordinator.

Fall/Winter

• Check(s) for the amount of the Fellowship is issued and sent directly to the Fellow(s) six weeks prior to expected arrival date. Baldwin Curator requests the money from Library Office, approved by Fund Administrator.

One Month Prior to Fellow's Arrival

 Faculty mentor appointed; Baldwin Curator requests Baldwin Library Office to transfer Mentor stipend from UF Bechtel account to mentor's account, approved by Fund Administrator.

After Fellowship

- Within two months following the completion of the Fellowship, Fellow submits a report, including activities and an evaluation of the experience, to the following individuals. The Chair and/or Baldwin Curator will be able to provide current contact information. Contact information for the Chair and the Curator are available on the ALSC Web site at http://www.ala.org/alsc. Fellow reports should be sent to:
 - ALSC Executive Director
 - Director of the George A. Smathers Libraries (who sends copies to mentors and trustees of the Cerimon Fund)
 - Baldwin Curator
 - Director of the Center for the Study of Children's Literature

PART III: ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Introduction

The Bechtel Fellowship Committee is responsible for selecting the award winner. The Chair, the Priority Group Consultant, ALSC staff and membership, the ALSC Board and President, and the ALA Public Information Office have specific roles and responsibilities. The lists below are comprehensive but not exhaustive.

Committee Chair Responsibilities

The Chair is a voting member of the committee with all the rights and responsibilities of other members.

The Chair's responsibilities include setting the tone for discussion. This can be done by accepting all pertinent statements, providing firm leadership in moving discussion away from tangents and back to criteria-based discussion, and providing opportunity for *all* members of the committee to contribute to the discussion.

In addition, the Chair will

- Establish calendar and welcome committee members (June).
- Ensure new application is available and posted on ALSC Web site.
- Arrange meeting time and space for Midwinter Meetings with the ALSC Program Coordinator, requesting a room for a closed meeting (by September 15).
- Solicit applications via the ALSC-L electronic discussion list and other appropriate listservs; work with ALSC Program Coordinator to ensure that announcements are placed in the ALSConnect newsletter and/or Children and Libraries; consider other venues for promotion such as Horn Book Magazine, School Library Journal, Booklist, and Book Links
- Arrange Annual Conference meeting time, if desired, with ALSC Program Coordinator (by November 15).
- Collect applications for award and distribute to all committee members, giving them sufficient time to read the applications before Midwinter (December).
- Verify applicants' ALSC membership status with ALSC Program Coordinator.
- Acknowledge receipt of applications with a postcard or email.
- Conduct all meetings of the committee (Annual/Midwinter).
- Attend ALSC Division Leadership Meetings at Annual Conference and Midwinter.
- Answer all correspondence promptly and send copies of all correspondence to the ALSC President, ALSC Vice President/President Elect, ALSC Program Coordinator, and the Priority Group Consultant (all year).
- Notify award winner(s), the Baldwin Curator, and the ALSC Board (Midwinter).
- Draft press release announcing winner(s) for ALSC Program Coordinator (Midwinter).
- Send letters to unsuccessful applicants (see sample in Appendix).
- Collect local publicity information from winner so that press release may be sent.
- Submit agendas & agenda cover sheets prior to Midwinter and Annual Conferences, and submit reports after Midwinter and Annual Conferences.
- Write letters of appreciation to members' supervisors at the end of their term (sample in

- Appendix).
- Send all committee files to ALSC Program Coordinator at close of term.
- Maintain communication with ALSC Program Coordinator and Priority Group Consultant (all year).
- Inform Priority Group Consultant of committee members who are especially good and/or those who haven't participated fully, if any.
- Review Bechtel Fellowship manual and make suggestions for improvement to Priority Group Consultant.

Committee Member Responsibilities

- Read and understand the committee's function statement and the Fellowship's terms and criteria.
- Participate fully in online and in-person meetings and discussions.
- Solicit applications from the ALSC membership.
- Promote the Fellowship when speaking or attending local, state, regional, and national conferences.
- Read and review all applications prior to the Midwinter Meeting, and be prepared to discuss strengths and weaknesses of each.
- Meet deadlines set by the Chair.
- Attend ALSC membership meeting at Annual Conference, if desired, to hear announcement of winner.

Priority Group Consultant Responsibilities

- Assist the committee and Chair with procedural and personnel problems when needed.
- Serve as liaison between committee Chair and ALSC Board.

ALSC Program Coordinator Responsibilities

- Sends letters of invitation to new committee members at President's instructions and confirms acceptance (Spring)
- Makes sure online roster is current (June).
- Distributes manuals to new committee members (June).
- Collects Bechtel Fellowship Award applications and forwards them to the Chair.
- Arranges for meeting rooms for both the Annual Conference and Midwinter Meeting, working with Chair on a suitable time.
- Coordinates Midwinter announcement of winner with Chair and ALSC Board.
- With PIO ensures availability of press release (shortly following Midwinter).
- Contacts winner(s) to ensure participation and invites winner(s) to attend ALSC membership meeting at Annual Conference to hear the announcement.
- Sends winner information and a copy of the winning application to Baldwin Curator.
- Invoices Baldwin Curator for \$500 administrative fee.
- Handles all ALSC office correspondence related to the award.

ALSC Membership Role

- Year One Consider applying; if interested, submit application to Chair by December 1 deadline.
- Promote interest in the Fellowship; spread the word to potentially interested colleagues

about the Fellowship and past winners and topics of study.

ALSC Board Responsibilities

• On request, review and reaffirm the committee's charge, criteria, procedures, etc.

ALSC President and Vice President/President-Elect Responsibilities

The Vice President/President-Elect will

• Appoint committee Chair and members (Spring).

The President will

- appoint committee members.
 - Make appointments to fill committee vacancies if necessary.
 - Deal with problems with committee members, if any, including asking those who cannot attend meetings or do not participate to resign, with input from ALSC Executive Committee.
 - Preside at ALSC membership meeting where recipient(s) accept the Fellowship.

ALA Public Information Office (PIO) Responsibilities

- Provides guidelines for preparation of press release information.
- Designates format and deadlines for submission of press release.
- Prepares information for press release in print and for ALSC Web site based on information submitted by committee.

Baldwin Curator Responsibilities

- Responds to questions from potential applicants.
- Provides housing information to Fellow.
- Arranges a mentor if the Fellow wishes to work with one.
- Requests mentor stipend from UF Bechtel account to mentor's account, subject to approval by Fund Administrator.
- Facilitates research while Fellow is in attendance.

APPENDIX

Appendix A: Sample Application

Louise Seaman Bechtel Fellowship Award Application Form

Name: ALA/ALSC Membershi Social Security Number Address:	•	
Work telephone: Home telephone: E-mail:		
Library School and Date	e of Degree:	
Current Position (if retin	red, list most recent	position):
Topic of Study for the F	Fellowship Period:	
a faculty member to act	as a mentor. The meake recommendation	rature at the University of Florida will assign entor's responsibility will be to discuss the as to enrich the Fellow's experience. Do you g January – September)
month	year	
 PLEASE ATTACH THE FOLLOWING: (TYPED ON 8 ½" X 11" PAPER): List of professional positions in children's literature collections and dates. Description of topics of study and significance of topic. Plan for pursuit of topic of study during Fellowship period. (Include special resources needed or personnel to be consulted.) Explanation of how the Fellowship will benefit your professional work and enhance your ability to stimulate children to read for pleasure. If retired, list possible venues for speaking about your research after your Fellowship is concluded. 		
SIGNATURE		DATE

Appendix B: Supervisor Information Form

Bechtel Fellowship Committee Sample Supervisor Information Form

Please supply the employer/supervisor information so a letter can be sent to your supervisor regarding your participation on the Bechtel Fellowship Committee. You may list as many names as you like. Your name Supervisor's Name Supervisor's Title Name of Institution Mailing Address Your name Supervisor's Name Supervisor's Title Name of Institution Mailing Address

Appendix C: Sample Letter to Supervisor

DATE
Supervisor Institution Addresss City, State, Zip
Dear,
Please accept our congratulations and gratitude for your support ofduring his/her term on the Association for Library Service to Children's Louise Seaman Bechtel Fellowship Committee.
This is an important assignment, as it helps to foster ongoing research in the field of children's literature. As part of this committee, has helped to select an applicant to be offered a Fellowship to study at the University of Florida's Baldwin Libraries, which house a collection of historical children's books, and to report on his/her research.
[Add a paragraph here about the winner, if desired]
Thank you again for your support during this selection process.
Sincerely,
Chair, ALSC Louise Seaman Bechtel Fellowship Committee

Appendix D: Sample Press Release

Contact: Laura Schulte-Cooper
ALSC Program Officer
312-280-2165

lschulte@ala.org

For Immediate Release February 13, 2007

2007 ALSC Bechtel Fellowship winner named

CHICAGO - The Association for Library Service to Children (ALSC), a division of the American Library Association (ALA), is pleased to announce that children's librarian Charmette Kuhn-Kendrick has been selected as the 2007 recipient of the Louise Seaman Bechtel Fellowship.

The Bechtel Fellowship is designed to allow a qualified children's librarian to spend a month or more reading and studying at the Baldwin Library of Historical Children's Literature, part of the George A. Smathers Libraries at the University of Florida, Gainesville, which contains a special collection of 85,000 volumes of children's literature published mostly before 1950.

The fellowship is endowed in memory of Louise Seaman Bechtel and Ruth M. Baldwin and provides a stipend of \$4,000, which must be used between January and September 2008.

Kuhn-Kendrick will study "The Goblins Will Get Ya: A Survey of Horror in Children's Literature from the 19th and Early 20th Centuries." She will read and study scary stories in juvenile fiction, non-fiction and folk tales to evaluate the lessons being taught to young readers through horror and to illuminate how horror has evolved in children's literature.

Members of the 2007 Louise Seaman Bechtel Fellowship Committee were: Denise Agosto, chair, Drexel University, Philadelphia; Ernie J. Cox, St. Timothy's School, Raleigh, N.C.; Floyd C. Dickman, Columbus, Ohio; Sandra Lane Fouts, Hayward (Calif.) Public Library; Nancy Gifford, Schenectady County (N.Y.) Public Library; and Cecily Pilzer, Georgetown Day School, Washington, D.C.

#

Appendix E: Sample Letter to Unsuccessful Candidates

DATE
Name Address City, State, Zip
Dear:
Thank you for submitting an application for the Louise Seaman Bechtel Fellowship. Unfortunately, yours was not among the winning applications, but we had an exceptional pool of candidates this year, and we hope you will consider applying again in the future.
We wish you the best of luck in pursuing your interest in historical children's literature, and we appreciate your interest in the Fellowship.
Sincerely,
Chair, ALSC Louise Seaman Bechtel Fellowship Committee

Appendix F

List of Past Bechtel Fellowship Recipients, by Year and Topic

1993/4	Sue McLeaf Nespeca: 19th and 20th century pop-up books
1994/5	Kathy Toon: 19th and early 20th century series books
1995/6	Marsha Cutler: Fairy and folk tales to be used in storytelling
1996/7	Jan Watkins: Family stories from the 1930s and 1940s
1997/8	Kathy East: Books children would have read in the 1880s, in preparation for establishing a one room 1880s school house for local children to visit
1998/9	Floyd Dickman: 19th and 20th century Cinderellas
1999/2000	Julia Massie: Children's poetry
2000/1	Mary Ann Paulin: Choral reading and poetry for children Kathleen Simonetta: Conflict resolution in early children's books
2001/2	Jane B. Marino: Children's Music/History and evolution of children's songs
2002/3	Leslie Barban: E. Nesbit and early 20th Century British children's literature, incorporating her research into "Let's Wrap About It," a summer book group
2003/4	Mary Humphrey: Heroic quest tales in fairy tale and folk literature
2004/5	Jean Hatfield: L. Frank Baum: A wizard with words Joyce Laiosa: Alphabet books of the 19th century
2005/6	Sharon Deeds: Mother Goose
2006/7	Jacqueline S. Rogers: The child illustrated: social roles revealed through dress depicted in 19th and 20th century children's literature Mary G. Marshall: Anatomy of a book collection: Ruth M. Baldwin and her quest to build a historical children's book collection
2007/8:	Charmette Kuhn-Kendrick: The goblins will get ya: A survey of horror in children's literature from the 19th and early 20th centuries